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Subject: OIA 2025/08: WI Register for the COVID-19 wage subsidy and meeDng?
Date: Friday, 13 June 2025 at 7:03:08 PM New Zealand Standard Time
From: Wendy McGuinness
To:
CC: Greta Balfour, Josie McGuinness
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To whom it may concern,
 
 Re: OIA 2025/08: MSD WI Register for the COVID-19 wage subsidy
 
We are in the final process of  completing our Working Paper 2025/08 – Analysing COVID-19 Wage
Subsidy Information Disclosed in Annual Reports of  NZSX-listed Companies.
 
A: Questions

This email relates to five NZSX-listed Companies. These are each discussed below as questions 1 to 5:
 
There are four sources we have reviewed in order to check our work.  
 

1. The NZSX-listed companies on the NZX
2. The WI Employer Search
3. The MSD spreadsheet (sent to us as part of  an OIA) (see OIA 2023/02).
4. The Companies Register

 
We wondered if  you could either (i) fix the WI Employer Search Register or (ii) explain why MSD has
reported the payments as shown on the WI Employer Search Register:
 
Q1:      Burger Fuel Group Limited. Burger Fuel Marketing is listed twice on the WI Register with

different accompanying figures, however there is no explanation as to why the same business
name is listed twice. Can you update this or differentiate between the two businesses? (e.g. are
they different locations)?

Q2:      ArborGen Holdings Limited: The WI Employer Search Register shows the company as ArborGen
New Zealand Unlimited but the companies register shows that three companies using ArborGen
in their name exist. One of  these is the NZSX-listed company (however it is not the ultimate
company). This raises a number of  questions: Did MSD use the ‘ultimate company’ concept to
check an application was recorded in line with accounting reporting standards or was the
concept of  ‘ultimate company’ for the wage subsidy process ignored? Can you check whether
your treatment is correct, or if  correct, explain your reporting treatment?

Q3:      RTO Limited (previously Blackwell Global Holdings Limited): On the WI Employer Search Register it
shows as Blackwell Holdings Limited, and both Blackwell Holdings Limited and RTO Limited are listed
on the companies register. To make things more complicated the company changed its name
from Blackwell Global Holdings Limited to RTO Limited on May 2024 (but this change is irrelevant
for our purposes). We wonder why Blackwell Holdings Limited was used when Blackwell Global
Holdings Limited was a NZSX-limited company. Was there any work undertaken to check which
was the best name to use in the register?

 
Q4:      Tourism Holdings Limited: The WI Employer Search Register shows the company by location

(e.g. Southern Tourism Holdings Limited). It is hard to know how Tourism Holdings Limited
(the NZSX-listed company) is linked to these regional companies. Was there any work
undertaken to check if  there was a link – the name alone would imply one exists.

https://companies-register.companiesoffice.govt.nz/
https://services.workandincome.govt.nz/eps/search
https://www.mcguinnessinstitute.org/publications/oias-correspondence/
https://companies-register.companiesoffice.govt.nz/
https://www.nzx.com/companies/BFG
https://www.nzx.com/companies/ARB
https://www.nzx.com/companies/RTO
https://app.companiesoffice.govt.nz/companies/app/ui/pages/companies/478691/documents
https://app.companiesoffice.govt.nz/companies/app/ui/pages/companies/1474151?backurl=H4sIAAAAAAAAAC2LQQoCMRAEf5PLHvYFg3jyElB0PzBkGg2YScxMhP29YfHWVVSvjZ%2BwNdXSWPNcBu7pdSpVQOaswl2C7w0E9ewzCR%2B6b9cl5pIdsgSWL2uC3FjxJu8D4Uj3bb6MzjH%2B%2BeHswy69jnboHwRN6Gd8AAAA
https://www.nzx.com/companies/THL
https://app.companiesoffice.govt.nz/companies/app/ui/pages/companies/6402692
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undertaken to check if  there was a link – the name alone would imply one exists.
 
Q5:      Fletcher Building Limited: The WI Employer Search Register shows the company as Fletcher

Building Share Services. However, that name does not appear on the Companies Office Register
(we only found it on the WI register). See also the 2020 Fletcher Building Limited Annual
Report – p. 73. It shows that Fletcher Building Limited was the recipient. Our view is that the
name on the WI Employer Search Register should be changed to reflect the name of  the annual
report (where it is disclosed). Can you explain your reasoning?

 
We appreciate that it is now five years since the pandemic began, however we consider that there is a
high-level of  certainty that there will be another pandemic in the next 20 years. Given this, we consider
MSD and IRD should work together to improve the subsidy system – and make it ready for any
eventuality (i.e. not just pandemics).
 
B: Meeting to discuss our recommendations?
Our draft working paper makes a number of  recommendations. Please forward this email onto the
team looking at how to improve future wage subsidy system/s. We would welcome the opportunity to
share our thoughts and ideas in advance of  the final report being published. We hope to release the
final draft of  the working paper next week, but will await your feedback before publishing the working
paper in final.
 
If  you could get back to us as soon as possible, that would be appreciated.
 
Many thanks, Wendy

 
Ques>on 1: Burger Fuel Marke>ng

 

https://app.companiesoffice.govt.nz/companies/app/ui/pages/companies/1104175
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Ques>on 2: ArborGen
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Q3:         Blackwell Global Holdings Limited
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Q4: Tourism Holdings Limited
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 Q5: Fletcher Building Limited
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Excerpt from the 2020 Annual report – p. 73 (full report acached).
 

 
Wendy McGuinness
Chief Executive
 
McGuinness Institute Te Hononga Waka
Level 1A, 15 Allen Street, Wellington 6011 | PO Box 24-222 Wellington 6142
+64 4 499 8888 | www.mcguinnessinstitute.org
 
The McGuinness Institute is a non-partisan think tank working towards a sustainable future, contributing strategic foresight through
evidence-based research and policy analysis.
 
Disclaimer: This email is intended only to be read or used by the addressee. It is confidential and may contain legally privileged
information. If you are not the addressee indicated in this message (or responsible for delivery of the message to such person), you may
not copy or deliver this message to anyone, and you should destroy this message and kindly notify the sender by reply email.
Confidentiality and legal privilege are not waived or lost by reason of mistaken delivery to you.
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